
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

VILLAGE OF WAU�AKEE 

TOW� OF WESTPORT JOI�T PLA� COMMISSIO� 

Village Hall, 500 W. Main Street 

August 9, 2016 - 6:00 PM 

 

Agendas may change prior to the commencement of the meeting.  

Please check the posting board at the Village Hall, 500 W. Main Street, 

Waunakee, Wisconsin for the current agenda. 

 

AGE�DA 

 

CALL TO ORDER 

 

ROLL CALL: Ken Sipsma, John Van Dinter, Eileen Bruskewitz, Pat McGowan, Mark 

McGuire, Brad Zeman 

 

MI�UTES 

1. July 12, 2016 

 

PUBLIC COMME�T 

 

OLD BUSI�ESS 

1. Discuss and Take Action on a Conditional Use Permit, Shed Exceeding 

Allowable Square Footage, 5570 River Road, Town of Westport 

 

�EW BUSI�ESS 

1. Initial Consultation, Rainbow Child Care Site Plan/SIP, Lot 266, Kilkenny 

Farms 

2. Initial Consultation, Mefferts Site Plan/SIP and Related CSM Lot 263, 

Kilkenny Farms 

3. Consultation, Proposed Billboard Revision on STH 19, Carl F. Statz and 

Sons Property 

4. Comprehensive Plan Update/Action-Housing and Economic Prosperity 

Elements 

 

ADJOUR� 

 

 

Any person who has a qualifying disability as defined by the Americans with Disabilities 

Act that requires the meeting or materials at the meeting to be in an accessible location or 

format should contact the municipal clerk at (608) 850-8500, 500 West Main Street, 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Waunakee, Wisconsin, at least twenty-four hours prior to the commencement of the 

meeting so that any necessary arrangements can be made to accommodate each request. 

 

 
VILLAGE OF WAU�AKEE BOARD A�D PLA� COMMISSIO� MEETI�G 

TOW� OF WESTPORT BOARD A�D PLA� COMMISSIO� MEETI�G 

�otice is hereby given that the Village or Town Board or Village or Town Plan Commission may attend this 

meeting. �o action will be taken by the Village or Town Board or Village or Town Plan Commission at this 

meeting. 

 

 

�ext scheduled meeting is September 13, 2016. 



 

JPC Meeting Minutes 8/1/2016 Page 1 of 2 

 
Village of Waunakee and Town of Westport 

Joint Plan Commission 
Minutes 

 
A regular meeting of the Waunakee/Westport Joint Plan Commission was held 
Tuesday, July 12, 2016, 6:00 p.m. at the Town of Westport Community Room, 

5387 Mary Lake Road, Town of Westport. 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER 

Mr. Sipsma called the meeting to order at 6:02 p.m. 
 
Members Present:  Ken Sipsma, John Van Dinter, Pat McGowan, Brad Zeman 
 
Members Absent:  Eileen Bruskewitz, Mark McGuire 
 
Also Present:  Tom Wilson, Kevin Even, Tracy Meinholz, Jerry Tierney, Jon Schultz, 
Richard Malisch, Kyle Dumbleton, Jerry Connery, David Everitt. 

 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

Motion Van Dinter, second McGowan, to approve the minutes from the June14, 2016 Joint Plan 
Commission meeting. Motion carried. 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT 

None 
 

NEW BUSINESS 
 

Public Hearing & Discussion/Action on a Conditional Use Permit, Shed Exceeding 
Allowable Square Footage, 5570 River Road, Town of Westport 
The public hearing was opened at 6:11 p.m. Neighbors present spoke of concerns with the 
commercial look and feel of this size of building. The public hearing was closed at 6:20 p.m. Mr. 
Schultz answered questions and assured the commission that he does not intend to operate a 
business from this location. The Town Plan Commission is recommending that the JPC defer 
action until the Town Board can make a recommendation. Motion Van Dinter, second McGowan, 
to table the request till the Town Board can make a recommendation. Motion carried. 
 

 

-1-

ITEM #1.



 

JPC Meeting Minutes 8/1/2016 Page 2 of 2 

 
 
 

Discussion/Action on At Home Again, Site Plan/SIP, and Related Certified Survey Map, 
Kilkenny Farms Lot 266 
After a brief presentation by the applicant, staff stated that the Village Plan Commission had 
recommended approval with certain conditions. Motion McGowan, second Zeman, to approve 
the site plan/SIP and CSM for Lot 266 conditioned upon all outstanding staff concerns addressed 
to the satisfaction of the Village Engineer, grant a parking exception for Phase1 with re-
evaluation prior to approval of Phase 2, and update of GDP Exhibit A map. Motion carried. 
 
 

ADJOURN 
Motion Van Dinter, second McGowan, to adjourn the meeting at 6:39 p.m. Motion carried. 
 
 
 
Submitted By: Tracy Meinholz, Recording Secretary 

 
Approved:  _________________ 

-2-

ITEM #1.



-3-

ITEM #1.



-4-

ITEM #1.



-5-

ITEM #1.



-6-

ITEM #1.



-7-

ITEM #1.



-8-

ITEM #1.



-9-

ITEM #1.



-10-

ITEM #1.



-11-

ITEM #1.



-12-

ITEM #1.



-13-

IT
E

M
 #1.



-14-

IT
E

M
 #1.



-15-

IT
E

M
 #1.



-16-

IT
E

M
 #1.



-17-

IT
E

M
 #1.



-18-

IT
E

M
 #1.



-19-

IT
E

M
 #1.



-20-

IT
E

M
 #1.



-21-

IT
E

M
 #1.



-22-

IT
E

M
 #1.



-23-

IT
E

M
 #1.



-24-

IT
E

M
 #1.



-25-

IT
E

M
 #1.



-26-

IT
E

M
 #1.



-27-

IT
E

M
 #1.



-28-

IT
E

M
 #1.



-29-

IT
E

M
 #2.



THIS DOCUMENT, THE IDEAS AND DESIGNS INCORPORATED

HEREIN AS AN  INSTRUMENT OF SERVICE, IS THE PROPERTY

OF JEWELL ASSOCIATES ENGINEERS, INC. AND IS NOT TO

BE USED IN WHOLE OR IN PART WITHOUT PRIOR WRITTEN

AUTHORIZATION OF JEWELL ASSOCIATES ENGINEERS, INC.

M
ef

fe
rt

 O
il

Vi
lla

ge
 o

f 
W

au
na

ke
e

D
an

e 
Co

un
ty

, 
W

is
co

ns
in

5-23-16

Drawing Name

Date

RevisionDate

Sheet No.

Project Number

20' 40'0'

Preliminary
Lot Layout

-30-

IT
E

M
 #2.



THIS DOCUMENT, THE IDEAS AND DESIGNS INCORPORATED

HEREIN AS AN  INSTRUMENT OF SERVICE, IS THE PROPERTY

OF JEWELL ASSOCIATES ENGINEERS, INC. AND IS NOT TO

BE USED IN WHOLE OR IN PART WITHOUT PRIOR WRITTEN

AUTHORIZATION OF JEWELL ASSOCIATES ENGINEERS, INC.

M
ef

fe
rt

 O
il

Vi
lla

ge
 o

f 
W

au
na

ke
e

D
an

e 
Co

un
ty

, 
W

is
co

ns
in

5-23-16

Drawing Name

Date

RevisionDate

Sheet No.

Project Number

20' 40'0'

Preliminary
Lot Layout

-31-

IT
E

M
 #2.



Print Date: 8/1/2016

DISCLAIMER: The Village of Waunakee does not guarantee the 
accuracy of the material contained here in and is not responsible for 
any misuse or misrepresentation of this information or its derivatives. SCALE: 1" = '

STH 19 Billboard

470

VILLAGE OF 
WAUNAKEE
500 W. Main St

Waunakee, WI 53597

(608) 850-8500

5,642.34

-32-

ITEM #3.



Compilation of Plan Content from existing adopted plans relevant to  
ECONOMIC PROSPERITY 
 

Page 1 of 5 
 

July 7, 2016 
 
JPA COMP PLAN (2003) 
Goals and Objectives 
6. The primary "economic development zone" in terms of new nonretail business expansion is the area 
between Highway 19/113 and Arboretum Drive west of Highway 1 13. This area should be reserved for 
planned business park development. 
7. Both residential and commercial development should be master planned, so that the future use and 
development of entire ownership parcels is taken into consideration, rather than piece-meal creation of 
individual lots. 

 
WAUNAKEE COMP PLAN (2003) 
REGIONAL 
1.C.5. Regional Economic Development Goals and Objectives 
1.C.5.1. Promote the development of balanced communities with sufficient commercial, office, and 
industrial sites to meet the needs of existing and future residents. 
1.C.5.2. Maintain healthy and economically viable downtown business districts in Middleton and 
Waunakee that reflect a “small town” atmosphere. 
1.C.5.3. Attract businesses and industries that are compatible with the character of the communities 
and do not adversely impact the environment. 
Regional Economic Development Policies and Programs: 
1.C.5.a. Encourage the location of industries and non-retail businesses within planned business parks. 
1.C.5.b. Maintain an inventory of fully serviced lots in business parks that will enable the North Mendota 
Communities to attract high quality businesses. 
1.C.5.c. Offer a variety of types of business park and commercial park settings. 
1.C.5.d. Continue to promote programs to enhance the downtown business districts through the use of 
design guidelines, preservation of historic structures, streetscape enhancements, and programs that 
promote locally-owned specialty businesses. 
1.C.5.e. Encourage the development of smaller neighborhood-oriented businesses within walking 
distance of surrounding residences. 
1.C.5.f. Adopt strong “green building” standards to require commercial and industrial developers to 
implement the most recent innovations in building design and landscaping to protect the environment. 
1.C.5.g. Control the development of unplanned commercial strips along arterial entrances to 
communities. 
1.C.5.h. Implement land use controls at the potential locations of interchanges and access points to the 
future North Mendota Parkway in order to prevent unplanned commercial development at these key 
locations. 
1.C.5.i. Discourage “big box” retailers that would have the effect of undermining existing business 
districts. This policy should not eliminate the potential for “big box” retailers, but would rather control 
their location and character. 
 
LOCAL 
Goals and objectives 
7.B.1. Maintain a balanced community with a mixture of residential, commercial, office, and industrial 
development. 
7.B.2. Attract higher value businesses and industries that create well-paying jobs, contribute 
substantially to the tax base, and are stable businesses that will be in the community for a long period. 

Commented [JV1]: Also addressed in Land Use and 
Community Design 

Commented [JV2]: Move to Land Use and Community 
Design 

Commented [JV3]: Move to Land Use and Community 
Design 

Commented [JV4]: This is covered by other, similar 
language 

Commented [JV5]: Included in a revised form, more 
specific wording 

Commented [JV6]: Move to Land Use and Community 
Design 

Commented [JV7]: Covered in Ag/Nat/Cult resources and 
Land Use 

Commented [JV8]: This part is not repeated in the “local” 
policies.  I OMITTED it. 

Commented [JV9]: Move to Land Use and Community 
Design 

Commented [JV10]: Higher value than what?    I 
OMITTED it. 

Commented [JV11]: I revised this to “stable, sustainable” 

-33-

ITEM #4.



Compilation of Plan Content from existing adopted plans relevant to  
ECONOMIC PROSPERITY 
 

Page 2 of 5 
 

7.B.3. Develop downtown Waunakee as a specialty retail and service district following the models 
established by communities such as New Glarus, Cedarburg, and Mount Horeb. 
7.B.4. Maintain the visual attractiveness of commercial districts and corridors in Waunakee. 
7.B.5. Attract “clean” businesses and industries that will not have adverse environmental impacts or be 
incompatible with the character and quality of the community. 
7.B.6. Relocate the remaining industrial uses in downtown Waunakee to sites in the business park. 
7.B.7. Reserve areas for future business park development on the east side of the Village. 
7.B.8. Maintain an inventory of high quality business sites that are suitable for a range of different types 
of businesses including light manufacturing, distribution, professional offices, and corporate offices. 
Central Business District Policies and programs 
7.B.a Provide guidelines and incentives for the redevelopment of unused and underutilized sites in the 
Central Business District. 
7.B.b Install streetscape enhancements that will help create an identity and unifying theme for Historic 
Downtown Waunakee. 
7.B.c Support reinvestments and improvements in Village Mall, Piggly-Wiggly, and other businesses in 
the West Central Business District. 
7.B.d Redesign the circulation and parking patterns in downtown Waunakee to provide better access to 
businesses from secondary streets and relieve traffic pressures on Main Street. 
7.B.e Develop a “Village Square” in the vicinity of the Depot that will serve as a central landmark and 
symbol of Waunakee’s historic traditions. 
7.B.f Encourage shared-use of parking facilities between uses with complimentary peak use periods. 
7.B.g Provide access and visibility to the Six Mile Creek corridor from downtown. Link downtown 
business district to future trails in the Six Mile Creek corridor. 
7.B.h Provide incentives and assistance to relocate existing industries and uses incompatible with 
downtown revitalization plans to sites within business parks. 
7.B.i Maintain the residential character of the remaining residential buildings on Main Street between 
Division Street and Century Avenue. Although the use of some of these buildings may convert to shops, 
offices, and other specialty businesses, their appearance should remain the same. These blocks are 
referred to as “transition zones” on Figure 7.1. 
7.B.j Preserve the viability of the rail corridor as a potential future transit corridor. 
Business and Industrial Park Policies and programs 
7.B.k Promote the development of master-planned business parks with well-designed circulation and 
drainage systems and protective covenants to assure quality buildings and sites. 
7.B.l Develop the Ballweg property on the east side of the Village, in coordination with a private 
developer, as the next major expansion of the Waunakee Business Park. 
7.B.m Continue to promote and support the Arboretum Office Park on the east side as a more 
specialized business park with smaller buildings and office-orientation. The Arboretum Office Park 
serves as a transition use district between larger businesses and industries located in the Waunakee 
Business Park to the north and residential uses south of Arboretum Drive. 
7.B.n Provide Village assistance through Tax Incremental Financing (TIF) for the provision of public 
infrastructure in planned business parks. 
7.B.o Create sites within business parks for the potential relocation of businesses and industries located 
in either the Downtown or elsewhere in the community where they are incompatible with adjoining 
land uses or redevelopments. 
7.B.p Provide a variety of lot types and sizes within business parks to provide a range of potential sites 
for new or relocated businesses. 

Commented [JV12]: I OMITTED the reference to specific 
communities. 

Commented [JV13]: OMITTED per discussion with staff 

Commented [JV14]: OMITTED – already developed. 

Commented [JV15]: There is similar language to this 
already in the draft. 
 

-34-

ITEM #4.



Compilation of Plan Content from existing adopted plans relevant to  
ECONOMIC PROSPERITY 
 

Page 3 of 5 
 

7.B.q Incorporate regional stormwater management facilities into business parks at the time they are 
initially developed. 
7.B.r Create attractive entrances and amenities within business parks that will help promote the parks to 
higher value businesses. 
7.B.s Develop pedestrian and bicycle circulation systems within business parks. 
7.B.t Reserve the area on the east side of Waunakee eastward to Highway 113 for future business park 
expansion. At some point in the future, the Highway 19/113 interchange is likely to be the primary 
entrance into the community. Premier sites in this area should be reserved for future economic 
development. 
Arterial Corridor Policies and Programs 
7.B.u Protect the aesthetic quality of the key arterial entrances into Waunakee by requiring a 
landscaped buffer strip parallel to the highway rights-of-way. 
7.B.v Discourage expansion of “big box” retail businesses that would undermine efforts to revitalize 
Downtown Waunakee. 
7.B.w Discourage commercial development along Century Avenue (CTH Q) south of Woodland Drive. 
This corridor is to be protected from commercial development as a “separation zone” between 
Waunakee and Middleton. 
7.B.x Prohibit off-site signage, including all billboards, on all arterial highway entrances into Waunakee. 
7.B.y Limit commercial driveway access onto CTH Q and Highways 19 and 113; where feasible use 
shared driveways, frontage drives, and access from side streets. 

 
WESTPORT COMP PLAN (2003) 
REGIONAL 
Goals: 
a. Promote the development of balanced communities with sufficient commercial, industrial, residential 
and open spaces to meet the needs of existing and future residents. 
b. Maintain healthy and economically viable downtown business districts in Middleton and Waunakee 
that reflect a "small town" atmosphere. 
c. Attract businesses and industries that are compatible with the character of the communities and do 
not adversely impact the environment. 
Objectives and Policies: 
a. Encourage the location of industries within planned business parks. 
b. Maintain an inventory of fully serviced lots in business parks that will enable the North Mendota 
Communities to attract high quality businesses. 
c. Offer a variety of types of business park and commercial park settings. 
d. Continue to promote programs to enhance the downtown business districts through design 
guidelines, preservation of historic structures, streetscape enhancements, and programs that promote 
locally-owned specialty businesses. 
e. Encourage the development of smaller neighborhood-oriented businesses within walking distance of 
surrounding residences. 
f. Adopt strong "green building" standards to require commercial and industrial developers to 
implement the most recent innovations in building design and landscaping to protect the environment. 
g. Control the development of unplanned commercial strips along arterial entrances to communities. 
h. Implement land use controls at the potential locations of interchanges and access points to the future 
North Mendota Parkway in order to prevent unplanned commercial development at these key locations. 

Commented [JV16]: Moved to Land Use and Community 
Design 

Commented [JV17]: OMITTED 
No longer relevant.  Should the updated plan identify a 
different edge for the next 20 years?  The current edge as 
recently approved for development? 

Commented [JV18]: Move to Land Use and Community 
Design 

Commented [JV19]: Move to Land Use and Community 
Design 

-35-

ITEM #4.



Compilation of Plan Content from existing adopted plans relevant to  
ECONOMIC PROSPERITY 
 

Page 4 of 5 
 

i. Discourage "big box" retailers that would have the effect of undermining existing business districts. 
This policy should not eliminate the potential for "big box" retailers, but would rather control their 
location and character. 
 
LOCAL 
Goal 1 
Prohibit the location of any commercial or industrial uses outside the Town Center as defined by this 
comprehensive land use plan. 
Objectives and policies 

• Utilize zoning controls to evaluate the location and scale of commercial development proposals 
for the Town of Westport within the Town Center. 

• Identify the potential use of any environmentally contaminated sites for development within the 
Town Center.  

• Allow commercial uses whose primary market area is that of the Town of Westport and its 
residents to locate in the Town Center if it is compatible with the other goals, objectives, and 
policies of this plan. 

• Site new commercial or industrial development in the Town Center only if it is compatible with 
the other goals, objectives, and policies of this plan. 

Goal 2 
Prohibit any commercial and industrial uses that are not compatible with the rural character of the 
Town. 
Objectives and policies 

• Prohibit environmentally threatening industry and other high intensity uses from locating in the 
Town. 

• Prohibit the siting of any new development in a manner that is incompatible with existing 
neighboring uses. 

• Identify criteria that would define acceptable commercial or industrial uses. 
• Permit commercial and industrial uses only in areas as designated on the proposed land use 

map. 
• Consider limited commercial uses proposed in agricultural areas on a case-by case basis. 
• Prohibit any commercial use that would be incompatible with neighboring uses, especially rural 

residences and farming operations. Incompatible uses may exhibit one or more of the following 
characteristics: 

o Excessive noise, light, traffic, or odor. 
o Dissimilar architecture, signage needs or other appearances. 
o Requires an excessive employees or generates significant customers from outside the 

Town of Westport or immediate area. 
o Requires exceptional levels of public improvements or services. 
o Lack of appropriate area for setbacks or screening between neighboring buildings, 

parcels and other land uses. 
• Prohibit the siting of any commercial use on prime agricultural land. 
• Commercial use in agricultural areas should have a relation to agriculture in some way. 
• Promote the stabilization, retention, and controlled expansion of the local and regional 

economic base in a manner consistent with this comprehensive land use plan. 
• Encourage regional or commercial development to· locate within existing urban service areas of 

the Village of Waunakee, the City of Madison, or the City of Middleton. 

Commented [JV20]: All identical to content in Village 
plan and previously addressed. 

Commented [JV21]: 1.Revised as “Non-farm 
commercial and industrial uses…” 

Commented [JV22]: We will have a blanket statement in 
land use about using zoning to implement the plan 

Commented [JV23]: Moved to land use 

Commented [JV24]: I revised these: “The Westport 
Town Center will develop further with retail, service, office 
and industrial businesses.” And: “Utilize this plan, 
particularly the Land Use and Community Design chapter, 
to guide the location and design of new commercial and 
industrial uses in the Town Center.” 

-36-

ITEM #4.



Compilation of Plan Content from existing adopted plans relevant to  
ECONOMIC PROSPERITY 
 

Page 5 of 5 
 

• Prohibit any use that generates excessive traffic, does not create good paying jobs for local 
residents, uses dangerous or potentially hazardous types of processes, requires large amounts 
of raw material, generates significant amounts of waste products, utilizes or requires hazardous 
materials, generates excessive noise, or has the potential to negatively impact the natural and 
agricultural resources of the Town of Westport. Commented [JV25]: All this to be addressed in land use 

-37-

ITEM #4.



Compilation of Plan Content from existing adopted plans relevant to  
HOUSING 
 

 
 

 
 

Page 1 of 4 

July 7, 2016 
 
JPA COMP PLAN (2003) 
Goals and Objectives 

No goals, objectives or policies specific to housing. 
 
 
 

WAUNAKEE COMP PLAN (2003) 
REGIONAL 
Regional Housing Goals and Objectives 
1.C.1.1. Provide a range of housing opportunities that meets the needs of persons of all income levels 
and age groups and persons. 
1.C.1.2. Provide housing for individuals and households with special housing needs. 
1.C.1.3. Maintain quality neighborhoods that offer residents of the North Mendota Communities a high 
quality of life. 
1.C.1.4. Discourage housing that contributes to patterns of urban sprawl. Regional Housing Policies and 
Programs 
1.C.1.a. Encourage housing developers to integrate different types of housing and housing at different 
levels of affordability into their residential subdivisions and other housing developments. 
1.C.1.b. Preserve and rehabilitate existing stock of affordable housing. 
1.C.1.c. Encourage neighborhood design that promotes social interaction and pedestrian access. 
1.C.1.d. Encourage the location of housing in areas that are readily accessible to schools, parks, and 
neighborhood business districts. 
1.C.1.e. In rural areas, utilize “Conservation Subdivision” principles to maintain the rural character of the 
countryside and preserve open space. 
1.C.1.f. Encourage Traditional Neighborhood Developments (TND’s) that foster a sense of neighborhood 
and community. 
1.C.1.g. Link the approval of new housing developments to the availability of infrastructure (including 
streets, schools, and utilities) to serve the housing. 
1.C.1.h. Discourage non-farm housing on prime farmlands outside existing communities. 
 
LOCAL 
Goals and objectives 
3.B.1. Develop and maintain high quality residential neighborhoods that are safe, attractive, and instill 
pride and a sense of identity and place in residents. 
3.B.2. Provide a diversity of housing opportunities that enables households with different needs and 
income levels to find housing in Waunakee. 
3.B.3. Coordinate the timing of subdivision creation and housing development so that there is a balance 
between the market demand for housing and the supply of available housing in the Village. 
3.B.4. Assure that housing development in the Village does not outpace the capacity of public services, 
including streets and the public school system. 
3.B.5. Encourage owner occupancy. 

Commented [JV1]: Covered by “Neighborhoods will be 
safe, attractive and distinctive” and associated objectives 
and policies 

Commented [JV2]: Move to Land Use and Community 
Design 

Commented [JV3]: Move to Land Use and Community 
Design 

Commented [JV4]: Addressed in Ag/Nat/Cult/Hist 
Resources 

Commented [JV5]: OMITTED 
Pending discussion.  Owner occupancy is a means to an end 
(stable, attractive, safe neighborhoods), not an end itself.  
Owner occupancy is now very high in the Village. 

-38-

ITEM #4.



Compilation of Plan Content from existing adopted plans relevant to  
HOUSING 
 

 
 

 
 

Page 2 of 4 

 
 
Policies and programs 
3.B.1. Require subdividers and developers to master plan residential developments so that there is 
adequate access, drainage, park and recreation facilities, and amenities available to residents at the 
time of development 
3.B.b. Encourage subdividers and developers to provide a range of housing types within larger 
developments. 
3.B.c. Locate housing development in areas where utilities and public facilities and services are available. 
3.B.d. Require all subdividers and developers to phase the construction of new housing so that public 
infrastructure can keep pace with increased demand. 
3.B.e. Require subdividers and developers to pay for or finance all on-site improvements and contribute 
proportionately to off-site improvements, such as street improvements and regional stormwater 
facilities. 
3.B.f. Maintain and rehabilitate older housing stock, particularly in the central portion of the Village. 
3.B.g. Require infill residential development to be compatible with the scale and character of the 
existing neighborhood. 
3.B.h. Encourage senior housing in the community so that life-long residents of the Waunakee area have 
opportunities to remain in the community. 
3.B.i. Encourage subdividers and developers to consider Traditional Neighborhood Developments (TND) 
that utilize smaller lots, include mixed-uses, foster pedestrian use, and promote neighborhood 
interaction. 
3.B.j. Encourage the use of cluster or conservation subdivisions in rural areas and in areas where there 
are environmentally-sensitive lands that should be protected. 
3.B.k. Adopt regulations that maintain the average number of additional dwelling units approved at no 
more than 126 dwelling units per calendar year, which has been the average annual dwelling unit 
increase over the past decade. 
3.B.l. Maintain regulations that require new developments maintain a ratio of 75 percent owner-
occupancy and 25 percent rental occupancy. Redevelopment projects and senior housing projects are 
exempt from this policy. 
3.B.m. Maintain the inventory of approved residential development lots and dwelling units at no more 
that a 9-year supply, which represents approximately the current supply of approved dwelling units and 
units for which petitions have been submitted, but are pending approval. 
 
WESTPORT COMP PLAN (2004) 
REGIONAL 
Goals: 
a. Provide a range of housing opportunities that meets the needs of persons of all income levels and age 
groups and persons with special needs. 
b. Maintain high quality neighborhoods that offer residents of the North Mendota Communities a high 
quality of life. 

Commented [JV6]: Moved to Land Use and Community 
Design 

Commented [JV7]: Included, but revised. 

Commented [JV8]: Included, but with a refocus on unit 
type rather than ownership?  Owner occupancy is tough to 
regulate. 

Commented [JV9]: This portion OMITTED. 

-39-

ITEM #4.



Compilation of Plan Content from existing adopted plans relevant to  
HOUSING 
 

 
 

 
 

Page 3 of 4 

c. Discourage housing that contributes to patterns of urban sprawl 
Objectives and Policies: 
a. Encourage housing developers to integrate different types of housing and housing at different levels 
of affordability into their residential subdivisions and other housing developments. 
b. Preserve and rehabilitate existing stock of affordable housing. 
c. Encourage neighborhood design that promotes social interaction and pedestrian access. 
d. Encourage the location of housing in areas that are readily accessible to schools, parks, and 
neighborhood business districts. 
e. In rural areas, utilize "conservation subdivision" principles to maintain the rural character of the 
countryside and preserve open space. 
f. Encourage Traditional Neighborhood Developments (IND's) that foster a sense of neighborhood and 
community. 
g. Link the approval of new housing developments to the availability of infrastructure (including streets, 
schools, and utilities) to serve the housing. 

h. Discourage non-farm housing on prime farmlands outside existing communities. 
 
LOCAL 
Goal 1 
Preserve the existing high quality and variety of housing stock. 
Objectives and policies 

• Enforce Town ordinances on property maintenance. 
• Enforce the local housing code. 
• Encourage residents to maintain or rehabilitate the existing housing stock as necessary. 
• Maintain a range of housing choices that meet the needs of current residents. 

Goal 2 
Impose restrictions on new housing development in the Town of Westport. 
Objectives and policies 

• Encourage appropriate types of development in areas designated by the comprehensive plan 
and applicable zoning ordinances. 

• Maintain the viability of agricultural land uses by preventing the division <:Jf parcels that are 
designated as A-1 Exclusive Agricultural zoning, strictly limiting housing development in 
these areas (see agricultural uses on the Proposed Land Use Map). 

o Farm-related residential rezones/land divisions in agricultural areas will be 
considered on a case-by-case basis. 

o Any land division proposed under this exemption must deed restrict the remainder of 
the original parcel to be permanently maintained as an agricultural land use that 
cannot be developed. 

o Any land division proposed under this exemption should be located in non-prime 
agricultural areas. 

• Limit land divisions to R -1 zoned parcels that do not change the integrity of the surrounding 
neighborhood. (see single family residential uses on the Proposed Land Use Map) 

• Consider housing development for current residents of the Town of Westport in 
nonagricultural areas (i.e. the Town Center) (see town center designation boundary on the 
proposed land use map). 

Commented [JV10]: This belongs in Land Use and 
Community Design 

Commented [JV11]: This belongs in Land Use and 
Community Design 

Commented [JV12]: Duplicate - Addressed in 
Ag/Nat/Cult/Hist Resources 

Commented [JV13]: OMITTED 

Commented [JV14]: OMITTED 
The restrictions will be the future land use map and related 
policies.  

Commented [JV15]: OMITTED 
Not really necessary.  All it says is “follow this plan and 
adopted ordinances”   

Commented [JV16]: This is already in the Ag resources 
section and Land Use and Community Design.  It doesn’t 
need to be here too. 

Commented [JV17]: Belongs in Land Use and Community 
Design. 

Commented [JV18]: Belongs in Land Use and Community 
Design. 
The “current residents” language will be dropped.  The 
point of this is preserving farmland for farming, and 
directing housing to other areas. 

-40-

ITEM #4.



Compilation of Plan Content from existing adopted plans relevant to  
HOUSING 
 

 
 

 
 

Page 4 of 4 

• Consider the development or redevelopment of low-income and moderate-income housing in 
designated areas of the comprehensive land use plan based on demand, land availability and 
compatibility with the surrounding neighborhood. 

• Monitor the residential development trends within and around the Town of Westport on a 
regular basis. (This applies to residential/and uses, the Town Center, and the use of 
agricultural splits in agricultural areas.) 

• Maintain accurate and current records to track the numbers and types of residential units 
being constructed on an annual basis. (This applies to residential/and uses, the Town Center, 
and the use of agricultural splits in agricultural areas.) 

• Require that all new residential developments be subject to the Town's design review process. 
(This applies to residential/and uses and the Town Center.) 

• Prohibit the division of substandard parcels or non-conforming parcels (e.g. parcels less than 
35 acres and created prior to the Town's adoption of Exclusive Agricultural Zoning). Such 
parcels, if vacant, may be rezoned to an appropriate zoning district consistent with this 
comprehensive plan, or to permit one dwelling unit in agricultural areas. 

Commented [JV19]: Included, in a revised form. 

Commented [JV20]: OMITTED 
I suggest you set your plan and use it to evaluate what the 
market brings to you. 

Commented [JV21]: Moved to Land Use and Community 
Design 

-41-

ITEM #4.



Draft plan content for the HOUSING section 
 

Page 1 of 3 
 

DRAFT July 7, 2016 
 
About This Shared Plan  
This is a joint plan adopted by both the Village of Waunakee and the Town of Westport.  Both 
communities will utilize this plan to guide private development and public projects and funding. Most of 
the goals, objectives, policies and programs are relevant and appropriate in both jurisdictions. Any items 
specific to only one jurisdiction are explicitly identified. Shared Village/Town policies that pertain to 
rural areas apply to all of the Town of Westport, and also to portions of other Towns in which the Village 
has extraterritorial interests and authority, including the Towns of Springfield, Dane and Vienna. 
 
Goals and objectives are presented here as desired outcomes; objectives are added under a goal only 
when there is the need to describe multiple desired outcomes not adequately captured in the goal 
statement.  Policies and programs include both actions and policy rules – they are the methods 
proposed to achieve the goals and objectives. 
 
HOUSING 
 
Goal 1 – Households and individuals with different needs and income levels will be able to 
find housing in the Waunakee/Westport community 
 
Objective 1.1 – At least a portion of new units in any new residential construction will incorporate 

“inclusive design” techniques that make them accessible to older residents and 
residents with disabilities. 

Objective 1.2 – There will be a range of unit sizes and price points in most neighborhoods 
 
Shared Policies and Programs 

1. Encourage housing developers to integrate different housing types and levels of affordability, 
especially within larger developments.  This could include smaller, more affordable units 
accessible to first-time homebuyers. 

2. Preserve and rehabilitate existing stock of affordable housing. 
3. Allow the development of low-income and moderate-income housing units when integrated 

appropriately with the surrounding neighborhood.  Avoid concentrating such units in one 
location and avoid isolating such units from other housing. 

 
Village Policies and Programs 

1. Encourage senior housing in the community so that life-long residents of the Waunakee area 
have opportunities to remain in the community. 

Town Policies and Programs 
1. Maintain a range of housing choices in the Town. 

 
Goal 2 – Neighborhoods will be safe, attractive and distinctive 
Objective 2.1 – Neighborhoods will be designed to foster social interaction and bike pedestrian access 
 
Village Policies and Programs 

Commented [JV1]: My language to encapsulate a bunch 
of related policies in the various plans. 

Commented [JV2]: My addition, reflecting community 
survey results about housing needs. 

Commented [JV3]: This had been:  
•Consider the development or redevelopment of low-
income and moderate-income housing in designated areas 
of the comprehensive land use plan based on demand, land 
availability and compatibility with the surrounding 
neighborhood. 

 

Commented [JV4]: This word replaces “instill pride and a 
sense of identity and place in residents”  

-42-

ITEM #4.



Draft plan content for the HOUSING section 
 

Page 2 of 3 
 

1. Encourage subdividers and developers to consider Traditional Neighborhood Developments 
(TND) that utilize smaller lots, include mixed-uses, foster pedestrian use, and promote 
neighborhood interaction. 

2. Require subdividers and developers to master plan residential developments so that there is 
adequate access, drainage, park and recreation facilities, and amenities available to residents at 
the time of development 

3. Encourage the location of housing in areas that are readily accessible to schools, parks, and 
neighborhood business districts. 

4. Work with developers proposing infill residential development, and adjacent residents, to 
ensure compatibility with the existing neighborhood.  Compatibility is determined case-by-case 
and includes consideration of architectural design strategies to blend larger structures with 
existing homes. 

5. Maintain regulations that require new developments maintain a ratio of 75 percent detached, 
single family units and 25 percent attached units. Redevelopment projects and senior housing 
projects are exempt from this policy. 

 

Town Policies and Programs 
1. Require that all new residential developments be subject to the Town's design review process. 

 
 

Goal 3 – New housing development will be timed and phased to coordinate with market 
demand and public services capacity 
 
Shared Policies and Programs 

1. Locate housing development in areas where utilities and public facilities and services are 
available. 

 
 
Village Policies and Programs 

1. Require all subdividers and developers to phase the construction of new housing so that public 
infrastructure can keep pace with increased demand. 

2. Require subdividers and developers to pay for or finance all on-site improvements and 
contribute proportionately to off-site improvements, such as street improvements and regional 
stormwater facilities. 

3. Maintain the average number of additional single-family detached dwelling units approved at no 
more than 125 dwelling units per calendar year. 

4. Maintain the inventory of approved residential development lots and dwelling units to provide 
at least a 3-year supply and no more than a 9-year supply. 

 

Town Policies and Programs 
1. Maintain accurate and current records to track the numbers and types of residential units being 

constructed on an annual basis. 
 

 

Commented [JV5]: The revised version of “Require infill 
residential development to be compatible with the scale 
and character of the existing neighborhood.”   

Commented [JV6]: Revised from “75 percent owner-
occupancy and 25 percent rental occupancy.” To reflect 
actual Village practices.   

Commented [JV7]: This had been “Adopt regulations that 
maintain the average number of additional dwelling units 
approved at no more than 126 dwelling units per calendar 
year, which has been the average annual dwelling unit 
increase over the past decade.” 

Commented [JV8]: Added per staff discussion 

-43-

ITEM #4.



Draft plan content for the HOUSING section 
 

Page 3 of 3 
 

Goal 4 – Existing housing will be maintained to ensure safety, quality and energy efficiency. 
 
Village Policies and Programs 

1. Explore development of a housing rehabilitation program to help property owners maintain and 
rehabilitate older housing stock, particularly in the central portion of the Village. 

Town Policies and Programs 
1. Enforce Town ordinances on property maintenance. 
2. Enforce the local housing code. 
3. Encourage residents to maintain or rehabilitate the existing housing stock as necessary. 

 

Commented [JV9]: I added this to suggest how the rest 
might occur. 

-44-

ITEM #4.


	AGENDA
	CALL TO ORDER
	ROLL CALL: Ken Sipsma, John Van Dinter, Eileen Bruskewitz, Pat McGowan, Mark McGuire, Brad Zeman
	MINUTES
	1. July 12, 2016
	[July 2016 JPC Minutes.pdf]


	PUBLIC COMMENT
	OLD BUSINESS
	1. Discuss and Take Action on a Conditional Use Permit, Shed Exceeding Allowable Square Footage, 5570 River Road, Town of Westport
	[Revised Site Plan 07.12.16.pdf]
	[Schultz Rezone Conditions 09.04.12.pdf]


	NEW BUSINESS
	1. Initial Consultation, Rainbow Child Care Site Plan/SIP, Lot 266, Kilkenny Farms
	[Rainbow Daycare Site Plan 07.19.16.pdf]

	2. Initial Consultation, Mefferts Site Plan/SIP and Related CSM Lot 263, Kilkenny Farms
	[Full page photo.pdf]
	[Lot Layout.pdf]
	[Lot Layout with Truck Movement.pdf]

	3. Consultation, Proposed Billboard Revision on STH 19, Carl F. Statz and Sons Property
	[Location Map.pdf]

	4. Comprehensive Plan Update/Action-Housing and Economic Prosperity Elements
	[Existing_Policies - Economic Prosperity 2016_7_7.pdf]
	[Existing_Policies - Housing 2016_7_7.pdf]
	[Proposed_Policies - Housing 2016_7_7.pdf]


	ADJOURN

